	APPROVED TOWN OF PELHAM BOARD OF SELECTMEN MEETING MINUTES January 22, 2013 APPROVED – February 19, 2013
CALL TO O	RDER – approximately 6:00pm
PRESENT:	Mr. William McDevitt, Mr. Edmund Gleason, Mr. Robert Haverty, Mr. Dou Viger, Mr. Hal Lynde
ABSENT:	Town Administrator Tom Gaydos.
REQUEST I	FOR NON-PUBLIC SESSION
MOTION:	(Gleason/Haverty) Request for a non-public session per RSA 91-A:3,II, e (Consideration or negotiation of pending claims or litigation)
ROLL CALL:	Mr. McDevitt-Yes; Mr. Gleason-Yes; Mr. Haverty-Yes; Mr. Viger-Yes (Mr. Lynde arrived during non-public session)
The Board er	ttered into a non-public session at approximately 6:03 pm.
The Board re	turned to public session at approximately 6:37 pm.
PLEDGE O	F ALLEGIANCE
MINUTES I	REVIEW
January 8, 2 MOTION:	<b>013</b> (Gleason/Haverty) To approve the January 8, 2013 meeting minutes as amended.
VOTE:	(3-0-2) The motion carried. Mr. Viger and Mr. Lynde abstained.
OPEN FOR	
	forward to speak.
Announcem	ent(s):
	n Deliberative Session, Tuesday, February 5, 2013 at 7pm in Sherburne Hall ol Deliberative Session, Wednesday, February 6, 2013 at 7pm in Sherburne
<ul> <li>As of vehic</li> </ul>	f January 2, 2013, Town Clerk now accepting "One Check" for any motor cle transaction n Filings for March 2013 Election from January 23, 2013 - February 1, 2013

<u>APPOINTM</u>	<u>ENT(S)</u>		
<u>Applicant fo</u>	or Forestry Committee: Christine McCarron		
with the Fores Commission f on the Conser Committee an	McCarron came forward to discuss her volunteer application. She's been active stry Committee (though not an official member) and a member of the Conservation for the past few years. Due to time constraints she decided to let go of her position rvation Commission. Ms. McCarron wanted to continue her work with the Forestry and make her position official. She discussed the various things she was involved in systems within the Town and what activities she would continue to do.		
MOTION:	(Lynde/Haverty) To appoint Ms. Christine McCarron as a member of the Forestry Committee with the term to expire March 31, 2015.		
VOTE:	(5-0-0) The motion carried.		
The Selectme	n asked that Ms. McCarron go to the Town Clerk's office to be sworn in.		
Ieff Gowan	Planning Director Discussions:		
	1 Study Recommendations		
	Enforcement Update		
	<b>F.</b> Road Safety Audit on Two Key Problem Intersections		
2101	Tribud Saloty Haalt on The Horizon Intersections		
Mr. McDevitt	t commented that last year's Town Meeting approved a warrant article to provide		
	a firm to do a flood study to help the Town identify and resolve some of the flooding		
	urring along Beaver Brook. A request for quotes was put together and resulted in		
quite a few ap	oplications, which after review had been reduced to three companies.		
	ector Jeff Gowan came forward and told the Selectmen that based on the written		
	hasse, Hangen, Brustlin, Inc. ('VHB') had ended up at the top of the list, although is were capable of completing the task. He said the quality of the proposal and		
	ature of the descriptions and the mapping put VHB at the top of the list.		
compening in	and of the descriptions and the mapping put vind at the top of the list.		
Mr. Gleason a	agreed with the recommendation and was in favor of the process including the		
public participation. He confirmed it would be an integral part of the study proceeding forward.			
	nswered yes; he believed the public portion may be the most important part of the		
study. He not	ted that VHB was an outstanding firm and was impressed in all his experiences with		
them.			
MOTION:	(Gleason/Lynde) To award the contract for the flood study to Vanasse, Hangen, Brustlin, Inc.		
VOTE:	(5-0-0) The motion carried.		
Mr. Gowan v	vill inform VHB of the Selectmen's decision. He noted that all the firms anticipated		

completion of the study within the April/May timeframe and to begin the public outreach

component at that time. Mr. McDevitt commented that both Mr. Gowan and Mr. Gaydos had the

opportunity to meet with each of the firms to discuss the proposals, the decision wasn't being

made solely on the submitted information. Mr. Lynde noted the Selectmen had the opportunity
 review the proposals and provide comment. He concurred that VHB presented a better proposal.

80

81 Mr. Gowan discussed code enforcement and the hiring of Mr. Jerry Rapucci as the new Code 82 Enforcement Officer for the Town. He discussed Mr. Rapucci's qualifications and how he had 83 approached the position. He said a bi-weekly code enforcement report will be submitted to the 84 Selectmen attached to the Planning Department's report. Mr. Gowan discussed the position and 85 the varied hours that would be covered (including some Saturdays and Sundays).

86

87 Mr. McDevitt asked if enforcement had slid backwards during the time without an officer. Mr.

Gowan said during the time in between officers the Town somewhat slid backwards; the focus
 was on safety related, acute issues. With Mr. Rapucci in the position, the department was able to

90 expand to a broader enforcement approach. Mr. Gowan was very pleased with the process.

91

Mr. Gleason asked what the public reaction had been. Mr. Gowan said he had heard very positive comments. Mr. Gleason wanted to know the primary nature of infractions. Mr. Gowan said infractions were of the same nature as they had been since he started in the department. He noted that (illegal used) car sales had crept back up. He said signs weren't as much of a problem as they had been. He said home businesses (not in compliance) and apartments were on the uptick. He said they were handled carefully because those things had the potential (during this economy)

98 to put people on the street. For these items safety is the primary motivator.

99

100 Mr. Gowan provided an update with the Nashua Regional Planning Commission ('NRPC').

Information was given to the Selectmen for review. He discussed the various areas for which
 NRPC assisted the Town, including mapping services.

103

104 Mr. McDevitt asked for a status summary regarding the State's involvement with the intersections 105 in the areas of Mammoth Road/Sherburne Road and Route 38/Ledge Road. Mr. Gowan said the report on the Mammoth Road/Sherburne Road intersection was presented and pointed out the 106 short, medium and long-term possibilities for improvements. He said it was a challenge to 107 108 execute the short-term items and had voiced his frustrations regarding such. He believed funding 109 was a piece of it and commented that the person heading the project had left the Department of 110 Transportation ('DOT'). He was surprised the smaller actions couldn't have been executed at the Mammoth/Sherburne intersection, such as signage, adjusting the configuration etc. However, 111 nothing has been done. Mr. Gowan said the report for the other intersection (Route 38) had just 112 113 been produced and finalized. When he asked the DOT when a meeting could be set to discuss the 114 report he was told it would take between three and six months. Mr. McDevitt questioned if there was anything the Selectmen could do to help move the process along. Mr. Gowan said it 115 previously helped for DOT to receive a letter from the Selectmen encouraging action. He said the 116 situation was not unique to Pelham, NRPC was working with others without seeing impressive 117 results. He offered to draft a letter for the Selectmen that would be sent to the DOT. 118 119

Mr. Gleason was in favor of sending a letter to the DOT and suggested asking them to expedite their actions. He said part of the previous discussion was the situation with the State not plowing/sanding the area until last. He said that would be a recurring theme through every winter until such time that a secondary road was opened. He would like them to move toward some kind of resolution and exert some influence on the Town's behalf.

125

126 Mr. Gowan will draft a letter to the State for the Selectmen to review.

127

128 Mr. Lynde questioned if any progress had been made to revise the 100-year flood plain. His 129 concern was the Town having an outdated map of the flood plain given the extreme weather 130 occurring. Mr. Gowan said an update would be an enormously complex process and couldn't 131 imagine the cost of trying to do it for the entire Beaver Brook. He said the consultant would bring them information on how to deal with certain aspects along the flood study issues. He 132 suggested possibly focusing on areas where the flood plain was most inaccurate. The flood plain 133 134 is based on elevation and the line on paper can be deceiving. Mr. Gowan couldn't offer any immediate advice on how to change the flood plain but commented related information would 135 136 come from the flood study the Town is undertaking. Mr. Lynde asked if the Planning Board could address things in more detail or protection as they proceeded with developments in 137 sensitive areas. Mr. Gowan believed that was already happening and discussed actions that 138 139 occurred during the development of the new bank.

140

## 141 OTHER BUSINESS

#### 142

## 143 **<u>Report on Budget Committee Reconsideration Meeting</u>**

144

Mr. Gleason stated the Selectmen brought forward three items for the Budget Committee to
reconsider: 1) Increase Insurance account to cover the latest projected fees; 2) Increase Legal
budget to cover the continuation of litigation; and 3) Increase Town Building's budget to
accommodate some increases for gas services. He reported those items were accepted by the
Budget Committee. He said the more significant item was the \$895,000 warrant article for the
conversion of the six classrooms for the School Administrative Unit, which passed with a 9-1
vote.

152

The Town's new 2013 Operating Budget is \$13,093,475 representing a 4.3% increase over lastyear.

155

Mr. McDevitt reminded the public that the Deliberative Session (February 5, 2013 at 7pm) was a
good time for citizens to ask questions about the budget.

# 159 **Review of Warrant in Final Form**

160

158

161 The Selectmen were driven by statute to post the warrant. Any changes to be made to the 162 Warrant Articles could be done at Deliberative Session. Mr. Gleason noted that Article 6 would 163 need to follow the wording recommendation of the DRA; he would offer an amendment to reflect 164 the recommendation during Deliberative Session. Mr. McDevitt said there may be additional 165 discussion regarding the Petition Warrant Article dealing with tax exemptions.

- 167 **Review of Cleaning Services**
- 168

166

169 This item was deferred.

170

172

# 171 Fire Station Update

173 This item was deferred.

174

175 Mr. McDevitt noted he would be working with the Fire Chief and PTV to do a video walk-

through of the fire station that would air on local cable.

177

178 December 2012 Revenue & Expenses

179				
180	This item wa	as deferred.		
181 182	SELECTM	EN'S / TOWN ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS		
183 184 185 186 187 188 189 190	Directors. storage to the approximate budget proce	stated he would be attending a special meeting of the Regional Haz Mat Board of The purpose of the meeting is to discuss a proposal to lease a facility to provide he District's vehicles and equipment. The cost increase to the Town would be ly \$600 per year. He said understanding the Town had already gone through the ess for the year, the board had identified left over funds from this year that would get a next year's budgeting process. He recommended supporting the proposal.		
191 192	•	xtended personal gratitude to everyone for the public outreach and support of his passing of his father.		
193 194 195 196 197	on a Bill sp representativ	Mr. Lynde stated that he, Mr. McDevitt and Mr. Gleason testified before the Elections Committee on a Bill sponsored by Representative Charlene Takesian to try to have Pelham have its own representative district of four representatives. He believed the testimony was compelling and very well structured.		
198 199 200 201	Mr. Gleason of the Town.	had no report. He complimented Representative Takesian for being vocal on behalf		
202 203	REQUEST	REQUEST FOR NON-PUBLIC SESSION		
204	MOTION:	(Haverty/Gleason) Request for a non-public session per RSA 91-A:3,II, a (Personnel)		
205	ROLL CALL:	Mr. McDevitt-Yes; Mr. Gleason-Yes; Mr. Haverty-Yes; Mr. Viger-Yes; Mr. Lynde-Yes		
206 207 208 209	any other act	that when the Board returned, after the non-public session, the Board would not take tion publicly, except to possibly seal the minutes of the non-public session and to neeting. The Board entered into a non-public session at approximately 7:47 pm.		
210 211	The Board returned to public session at approximately 8:35 pm.			
	MOTION:	(Haverty/Lynde) To seal the minutes of the non-public session indefinitely.		
212 213 214	VOTE:	(5-0-0) The motion carried.		
215 216	ADJOURNMENT			
217	<b>MOTION:</b>	(Haverty/Lynde) To adjourn the meeting.		
	VOTE:	(5-0-0) The motion carried.		

218	
219	The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:35 pm.
220	
221	Respectfully submitted,
222	Charity A. Landry
223	Recording Secretary
224	
225	
226	
227	
228	
229	
230	
231	
232	
233	
234	
235	
236	
237	
238	
239	
240	
241	
242	
243	
244	
245	
246	
247	
248	
249	
250	
251	
252	
253	
254	
255	
256	
257	
258	
259	
260	
261	
262	
263	BOARD OF SELECTMEN ACTION ITEMS
264	
265	<u>March 29, 2011</u>
266	• Mr. Gaydos to put timeline together for Castle Hill Road (6/7/11 easement being
267	completed that would allow the Crawfords to access their property)(7/5/11 – Mr. Gaydos
268	stated the project was moving forward, there were other issues to get out of the way prior

269	to addressing this)(8/2/11 Mr. Gaydos is working with Attorney Solomon and will have a
270	timeline quickly)(8/9/11 – Mr. Gaydos continuing to work with Attorney Solomon-
271	associated correspondence will be provided to the Selectmen)(8/30/11 – still in progress);
272	1/17/12 – still in court. As of 7/10/12 on-going legal issues – October 16, 2012 remains in
273	court.

## 275 May 10, 2011

274

292

293

294

295

303

276 Mr. McDevitt researching appropriate signage for Raymond Park (where parcels are • 277 located and what names were allowed per deeds) (6/7/11 Mr. McDevitt said research was 278 completed and would like to discuss with the Board after the meeting of  $\frac{6}{28}/11$  ( $\frac{7}{5}/11$ 279 - Mr. McDevitt said a discussion should be scheduled regarding the names at Raymond Park. Information is available to educate the Selectmen. A discussion will be scheduled 280 281 for July 19, 2011)(8/2/11 Mr. McDevitt said the Board had received a draft of the naming 282 requirements of the park, which raised additional questions. The Selectmen will schedule a discussion at a later time)(8/9/11 - there is a question whether there could be signs that 283 stay up at Raymond Park – this is in the process of being addressed)(8/30/11 - agenda)284 285 item scheduled)  $/ \frac{10}{25}/11 - research still being conducted and signs to be designed;$ 1/17/12 – ongoing project – an Eagle Scout project will possibly be brought forward to 286 287 put up kiosk. July 10, 2012 – Park & Recreation Director waiting for a Boy Scout to come forward with a project. / October 16, 2012 Mr. McDevitt will speak to Park & 288 Recreation. 289 290

### 291 May 24, 2011

• Mr. Gaydos to review the legal ramifications of changing the road classification in the Gumpas Pond area; 7/1012 Mr. Gaydos to check status with Ms. Waters. / October 16, 2012 pending.

### 296 July 5, 2011

Mr. Gaydos to request from Comcast something in writing indicating there will be no additional charge for moving cable to new fire station location (8/2/11 Mr. Gaydos said there were several issues he would deal with all at once when Comcast returned the signed contract)(8/30/11 – contracts returned – Town will approach Comcast with two required follow up letters of agreement) / 10/25/11- Mr. Gaydos to ask Mr. Greenwood to follow up; 1/17/12 follow up needed for written agreement. / October 16, 2012 pending

### 304 August 2, 2011

Obtain status regarding Young's Crossing and the flashing sign on Route 38/Gage Hill 305 306 Road/Ledge Road intersection and from Police Chief. (8/9/11 Mr. Gaydos had a 307 discussion with Police Chief Roark regarding the flashing light and there may be less expensive alternatives. The Chief has requested a meeting with the DOT district for 308 309 Pelham)(8/30/11 – correspondence received from State – Mr. Gaydos to work with Police 310 Chief Roark to compile accident statistics) / 10/25/11 – Mr. Gaydos said Chief Roark was heading this up – the same type of study is being done at the Sherburne Road 311 312 intersection.; 1/17/12 – still working with intersection (with state) in conjunction with 313 Sherburne Road. / October 16, 2012 Planning Director Gowan to address and provide status update. 314 315

### 316 August 16, 2011

• Mr. Gaydos to research if there is legislation pertaining to dam water releases for a future agenda item (8/30/11 –Mr. Gaydos working on response regarding dam water releases

319	and hoped it would also address the flood ordinance Mr. Gowan was working on)/
320	10/25/11 – Mr. Gaydos said there was wording, but it didn't have sufficient 'teeth' – an
321	agenda item will be scheduled for Selectmen discussion; 1/17/12 – at a standstill between
322	what the state is willing to do and what the Town would like them to do. Mr. Gaydos felt
323	the flood study would aid in an outcome. /October 16, 2012 proposals to be reviewed and
324	narrowed down and presented.

## 326 April 10, 2012

• Mr. Gaydos to contact people in Londonderry regarding the flood study and work with Mr. Gowan to coordinate. / October 16, 2012 pending.

## 330 April 24, 2012

• Planning Director to review water supply regulation and well ordinance documents and return comments to the Selectmen; October 16, 2012 in progress.

## 334 July 17, 2012

• Selectmen to revisit the PUC order/Pennichuck Water to see what the repayment obligation (for legal fees) was to the Town.

## 338 November 13, 2012

- Fireworks education Mr. Viger
- SAU Office Space
- Well Ordinance and Waste Disposal Systems Regulation information/draft

342 343

325

327

328 329

331

332

333

335

336

337

339

340

341